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AUDITORS' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal A ssociation and Subsidiaries 

W e have audited the accompan ying consolidated statements of financial position of Louisiana M unicipal 
Association and Subsidiaries (LMA) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated 
statem en ts of activities an d cash flows for the years th en ended. These consolidated finan cial statements are the 
responsibility of managem ent. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial 
statemen ts based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted by the United States of 
America. Those standards require th at we plan  and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan cial statemen ts. /Ma audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significan t estima tes ma de by man agement, as well as 
evaluating the overall finan cial statemen t presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our  opinion. 

In our  opinion, the consolidated financial statemen ts referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Louisian a M unicipal Association and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 
and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conform ity wi th 
accoun ting prin ciples generally accepted by the United States of Am erica. 

Our audits were m ade for the purpose of forming an opinion on th e consolidated finan cial statem en ts taken as a 
whole. The consolidating inform ation included on pages 12 through 15 is presented for purposes of additional 
an alysis of the consolidated financial statements rath er than to present the financial position, results of 
operations and cash flows of the individual compan ies. The consolidating information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is 
fairly stated in all m aterial respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken  as a whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Bird, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, ~  70809 TeL 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIA TION AND SUBSIDIA RIES 

CONSO LID ATED STATEM ENTS OF FINAN CIAL PO SITIO N 

Cash 

Investments (note 2) 
Accounts receivable 

Due from affi liates (note 3) 
Prepaid expenses 

Land, building and equipment, net (note 4) 
Other assets (note 6) 

Total assets 

2002 2001 

1,477,548 
1,450,971 

177,152 

1,269,973 
47,516 

4,604,473 
56,383 

Liabilities: 
Unearned dues and fees 
Accoun ts payable and accrued expenses 

Note payable (note 3) 
Claim s processing payable 

Total liabilities 

N et assets - unrestricted 

Total liabilities and net assets 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statem ents. 
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$ 9.084,016 

$ 1,031,111 
1,339,314 
170,501 
679,706 
43,758 

4,710,281 
612.438 

$ 157,626 $ 127,098 
575,449 489,942 

396,890 
250.000 250.000 

983,075 1,263,930 

$ 9.084.016 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATIO N AND  SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEM ENTS OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

Changes in unrestricted net assets: 
Revenues and other support: 

Administrative fees and commissions (note 3) 
M em bership dues 

Legal services (note 3) 
Rent 

Investment income (note 2) 
Other incom e 

Total revenues an d other  support 

Expenses: 
General and adm inistrative 

Remediation of building (note 6) 

Total expenses 

Increase in unrestricted net assets 

N et assets at beginning of year 

Net assets at end of year 

See accom panying notes to consolidated financial statements 
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2002 2001 

$ 4,372,114 
283,454 

358,786 

117,406 

60,516 

335.606 

4,750,120 

4.750.120 

$ 3,802,638 
274,040 

291,485 

97,418 

105,385 

302,829 

4.873.795 

4,358,682 

415.871 

777,762 99,242 

$ 8,100,941 $ 7,323,179 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSO CIA TION AND SUBSID IARIES 

CONSOLID ATED STATE M ENTS OF CASH FLOW S 
YEAR S ENDED DECEM BER 31, 2002 AND 2001 

Change in unrestricted net assets 

Adjustments to reconcile the change in unrestricted 
net assets to net cash provided by operations: 
Depreciation and am ortization 
Change in receivables, prepaids, due 
from affiliates an d other assets 

Changes in accoun ts payable, accrued 
e:~penses and unearned dues 

N et cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 
Purchase of property, plant an d equipm ent 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from  m aturities of investm ents 

Net cash used m investing activities 

Cash flows from  financing activities 
Paym ents on note payable 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accom panying notes to consolidated finan cial statem ents 
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2002 2001 

777,762 $ 99,242 

190,971 

(15,378) 

169,235 

52,144 

116,035 (53,994) 

(84,607) 
(1,725,111) 
1,583,655 

(226,063) 

266,627 

(71,420) 
(1,880,155) 
1.748.845 

(202,730) 

(396,890) (212,147) 

446,437 

1.031.111 

(148,250) 

1,179,361 

$ 1,477,548 $ 1,031,111 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSOCIATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

LIDA 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Principles and Consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statem ents include Louisiana M unicipal Association 
(LM A) an d its wholly-owned subsidiaries Risk Man agement, Inc. (RM I) and Louisiana Mtmicipal 
Advisory and Technical Services Bureau, Corp. (LaM ats). All intercompany tran sactions and 
balances have been eliminated. 

Organization Background 

LM A is an association for the m unicipalities of Louisian a and is incorp orated as a non-profit 
corporation under the laws of the State of Louisian a. 

RM I, a Louisian a corp oration, serves as the third-party administrator for the Louisiana M un icipal 
Ri sk Management Agen cy (LMRMA) which was formed under Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to 
provide a program  of interlocal risk m anagem ent for LM A's m ember municipalities. LM A and RM I 
are related by common management to LMRMA (W orker's Compen sation Fund, Public Liability 
Fund and Accident an d Health Fund), the Louisian a Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA), and 
the Louisiana Mun icipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (LMA-UCF). 

RM IA, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary  of RM I, was incorporated in 1992 to act as an agent for 
purchasing insuran ce on behalf of member mun icipalities and others. 

LaM ats was incorporated in 1998 for the purpose of providing various advisory and technical 
services primarily to the membership of the LM A . 

(c) Financial Statement Presentation 

LM A 's net assets, support an d revenues, an d expenses are classified based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Unrestricted net assets are those that are not subject to donor- 
imposed stipulations. Currently, LM A  has only un restricted net assets. 

LM A reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received with donor 
stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. W hen a donor restriction expires

, that is, when a 
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net 
assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statem ents of activities as net 
assets released from  restrictions. 

5- 



1. POLI (continued) 

Investm ents, consisting of U .S. Govern ment and Agen cy issues, are recorded at estim ated fair value. 
Unrealized gains and losses on investm en ts in debt securities are recorded in the statement of 
activities as in creases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is temporarily or 
perm anently restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law . In vestm ent incom e is recorded as 
increases on unrestricted net assets unless the use is restricted by donor. 

(e) Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation and am ortization are computed using straight-line an d accelerated methods over the 
estim ated useful lives of the assets as follows: 

Buildings and fixtures 
Office equipment 
Automobiles 
Land improvem ents 
Com puter  equipm ent and softwar e 

5-40 years 
5-10 years 
3-5 year s 
5 year s 

3-5 years 

09 Dues Income - LMA 
Am ounts collected in th e current year for m embership dues for the follow ing year ar e recorded as 
unearned income in the current year. Dues for the current year not collected at December 31 are not 
recorded as income for the ctwrent year. 

(g) Administrative Fees and Commissions 
Am ounts earn ed in the current year are based on an estimate of earn ed prem ium of LM RM A, which 
approximates actual. Any adjustm ents from estimated earned premium to actual earned premium are 
adjusted in the year in which they become known. 

(It) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand dep osit 
accounts with ban ks. 

(i) Use of Estimates 

M anagem ent has m ade a num ber of estim ates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and 
liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Actual results could differ from those estimates and 
assumptions. 

As service agent for the LM RIVlA, RM I has responsibility for administration of the claims related to 
the 2002 and prior fund years. This liability has been estimated based on the costs necessary to 
fulfill this obligation to continue as serv ice agent for the years for which revenue has been received 
and recognized. 

- 6- 



NOTES TO CONSOLID A' 

3 

The amortized cost of investm ents are $1,438,535 and $1,324,835 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, 
respectively. At December 31, 2002, all securities owned have contractual maturity terms within the next 
tw o years. The estim ated fair value of investments by security type at December 31, 2002 an d 2001 are as 
follows: 

2002 2001 

U .S. Govern m ent Agency obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

561,548 
889.423 

$ 822,751 
516,563 

$ 1,450,971 $ 1,339,314 

In vestm ent incom efortheyears endedDecem ber 31,2002 and 2001 consi~s ofth efonowing: 

2002 2001 

Interest income $ 62,558 $ 
Realized losses - net 

Unrealized (losses) gains arising during year ( 2,042) 

(a) Fees and Services 

90,575 
(1,269) 
16.079 

$ 60,516 $ 105,385 

LM A provides services related to the LM RM A's self-insurance fim ds operated for the benefit of 
Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective 

earned standard premiums (ESP) for 2002 and 2001 or on a per covered participant (PCP) basis. The 
following schedule recaps adm inistrative fees earned by LM A from  LM RM A for the year s ended 
December 31, 2002 an d 2001 and balances due from LM RM A. 

2002: 
Feeseam ed from LM RM A : 

W orkers' 
Compensation 

Public Liability 
Accident and Health 

Adm inistrative 
fee 
LM A 

472,958 
727,485 
17.173 

- 7- 

Due from 
LM RM A 

172,958 
487,486 

1.454 

661.898 



N OTES TO 

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

2001: 
Fees earned from LM RM A: 

W orkers' 
Compensation $ 

Public Liability 
Accident and Health 

Adm inistrative 
fee 
LM A 

367,229 $ 
638,244 
17,060 

Due from  
LM RM A 

67,229 
398,244 
1A25 

466.898 

From time-to-tim e the LM A Board has returned a portion of LM A's adm inistrative fees to LM RM A. 
During 2002 and 2001, no adm inistrative fees were returned by LM A . 

LM A provides legal assistance for the various member municipalities and the LM RM A on a fee for 
service basis. 

RM I has a contract with LM RM A  to provide service agent services for a percentage of earn ed 
standard premium . Balances and am ounts from  transactions with LM RM A during the years ended 
December 31 ar e as follows: 

Service fees earned 

Percent of RM I's total service fees 
and comm issions 

Balan ce due from LM RM A 

2002 2001 

$ 2,145,962 $ 1,791,480 

76.2%  73.1%  

36.518 

In addition, RM I receives a five percen t commission on reinsurance purchased by LM RFA. 

LM RM A provides accident and health and workers' compensation insurance to employees of LM A 
and RMI. The total consolidated insurance expense (included in employee benefits) was $140,609 
and $142,301 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

- 8- 



3. RELATED P, 

NO TES TO CON SOLIDATED FIN AN CIAL STATE 

(continued) 

(b) Note Payable 
LM A had a variable rate note agreement with the LM RM A Public Liability Fund. The note bears an 
interest rate equal to the average investm ent return yielded by the Fund on its investm ents at 
December 31, 2001. LM A m ade m onthly payments of $20,425 due the first day of each month based 
on a 360 month am ortization. Collateral for this note was a building owned by LM A. Th e Fund 
earned interest of $16,062 and $32,948 in respect to the note for the years ended December 31, 2002 
and 2001, respectively. During 2002, LM A repaid the remaining balance on the note. 

4. LAND, BUILDING AND EOUIPM ENT 

Land, building and equipment consist of the following as of December 31: 

2002 2001 

Land 
Buildings and leasehold improvemen ts 
(see Note 5) 

Furniture and equipm ent 
Vehicles 

Accum ulated depreciation 

491,000 $ 491,000 

5,478,613 
1,112,245 
121,399 

5,467,143 
1,138,816 
102,215 

7,203,257 7,199,174 

(2,598,784) (2,488,893) 

$ 4,604,473 

LM A is incorporated as a non-profit organization and has been gran ted an  exemption from income taxes 
under Section 501 (c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code. 

RM I is a taxable entity which had no tax due in 2002 or 2001. LaM ats is a taxable entity which paid 
$20,000 in federal income taxes during 2002. No federal taxes were remitted or due in 2001 for LaM ats. 
Tim ing differences betw een book and tax able incom e relate primarily to the liability for estimated future 
claim s processing costs. A deferred tax  asset has been recorded at December 31, 2002 and 2001. 

9 



N O TES TO  

6. O TFIER A SSETS 

Other assets consist of the following as of December 31 

Deferred tax benefit $ 
Interest receivable 
Construction in progress-building repairs 

and litigation recoverable 

2002 2001 

49,122 $ 
7,261 

49,122 
13,316 

550.000 
$ 56,383 $ 612,438 

The original construction of LM A 's building included design and construction defects which were repaired 
during 2000 and 2001. Th e building defects were the subject of litigation and arbitration against parties 
which LM A 's management believed to be at fault. During 2002 and 2001, settlem ents were reached with 
the parties to the litigation including the successful recovery of a substantial am ount of the remedial and 
related costs. 

In cluded in oth er assets at December 31, 2001 was $550,000 of settlement proceeds recoverable. LM A 
also transferred to building costs and capitalized $626,097 of costs incurred which attributed to 
betterments, improvements, and extension of th e original life of the building. During the year ended 
December 31,2001, LM A recognized a charge of $415,871 related to the building litigation matter which 
w as not recoverable in the settlements an d was not capitalized in the cost of the building. 

7. M ULTI-EM PLOYER PENSION PLAN 

All of LM A and RMI's (including related subsidiary's) full-time employees participate in Plan A of the 
Municipal Employee's Retirement System of Louisian a (the Plan), a multiple-employer mun icipal 
em ployee retirem ent system . The payroll for LM A 's employees cover ed by the Plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2002 an d 2001 was $829,319 an d $755,979, respectively. Payroll for RM I's employees 
covered by the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $841,558 an d $810,780, 
respectively. 

A ll employees of LM A and RM I ar e required to participate in the Plan if th ey ar e under the age of 60, are 
full-tim e employees, and ar e not participating in another publicly fun ded retirement system . Any employee 
can retire provided he or she m eets one of the following criteria: any age with 25 or m ore years of er edited 
service or age 60 with a m inim um  of 10 year s of credited service. Retirees ar e en titled to a retirem ent 
benefit, payable m onthly for life, equal to 3 per cent of th e m ember's final com pensation multiplied by his 
years of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of the member's final salary. Employees becom e 
fully vested on reaching 10 years of serv ice. Th e Plan also provides surv ivor's and disability benefits. 
Covered employees are required to contribute a percentage of their salary to the Plan (the rate is 
determined by the Plan and can fluctuate). Of the total contribution required to be contributed for a 
covered employee, the employees contribute 5% , while LM A and RM I contribute the remainder. LM A 
and RM I's contribution percentage increased from 10.5% to 11.25%  on July 1, 2001. Additionally, LM A 
and RM I's contribution percentage increased to 12.25%  on July 1, 2002. The contribution requirement for 
LM A for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $138,988 and $120,115, which consisted of 
$97,522 and $82,316 from LM A and $41,466 and $37,799 from employees, respectively. Th e contribution 
requirement for RM I for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was $137,355 and $124,781, which 
consisted of $97,198 and $86,377 from RM I, and $40,157 an d $38,404 from employees, respectively. 

- 10 - 



M UNICIPAL ASSO CIATI 

FINANCIA L STA' 

RM I entered into a five-year non-eancelable lease with LM A for the space it conducts its operations in for 
$20,425 per month. The lease has a five-year renewal option exercisable by RM I if notice is given to LM A 
within thirty days of expiration. Additionally, the curren t lease expires on December 31, 2002. During the 
years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, RM I paid LM A rent as shown below . In addition, RM I has 
agreed to act as th e leasing agent for LM A's building. As part of this agr eem en t, RM I is entitled to a fee 
equal to the revenues from rent collected from tenants of the building (excluding RM I's rent paid to LMA) 
less appropriate expenses such as, but not lim ited to, utilities, repairs an d m aintenan ce, and certain 
insurance coverages. Below is a recap of transactions relating to th is rent agr eement betw een LM A and 
RM I for th e years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. 

9. D 

RM I's rent paid to LMA (eliminated in 
consolidation) $ 

Ren t received by RM I 
Building expenses incurred by RM I 

Net rental expense 

PLAN 

2002 2001 

248,065 $ 248,355 
116,736) ( 100,678) 
100,100 104,340 

$ 231,249 $ 252,017 

LM A offers its employees a deferred com pensation plan  created in accordance with Intern al Revenue Code 
Section 457. This plan, available to all employees, pemaits them to defer a portion of their salary until 
future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees un til termination, retiremen t, death , 
or un foreseeable em ergency. 

Prior to 1997, all am ounts of compensation deferred under the plan , all property an d rights purchased with  
those amounts, and all income attributable to those amoun ts, property or rights are (until paid or made 
available to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property an d rights of LMA (without being 
restricted to the provisions of benefits tmder the plan), subject only to the claims of LMA's general 
creditors. During 1997, LM A m odified its plan to qualify under the applicable Intern al Revenue Code 
section. Th is qualification protects the assets of the deferred com pensation plan from  LM A 's creditors. 

LM A and its subsidiaries become involved in litigation from time-to-tim e. At December 31, 2002, LM A 
and a subsidiary were involved in litigation which m anagem ent believes will not have a m aterial adverse 
effect upon LM A. 
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Postlcthw aRe &  N ettcrville 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Associated Offices in Principal Cities of the United States 

www.pncpa.e0m 

EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisian a M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 
Accident and Health Fund 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
Accident an d Health Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and 
the related statements of revenues, expenses and chan ges in accum ulated deficit, and cash fiows for the years 
then ended. These financial statemen ts are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on th ese finan cial statem en ts based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

. 

Those stan dards require that we plan and perform  th e audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether th e 
financial statements are free of m aterial misstatement. An audit includes exam ining

, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts an d disclosures in the financial statemen ts. An audit also includes assessing the 
accoun ting principles used and significan t estimates made by m anagement, as well as evaluating th e overall 
finan eial statement presentation. W e believe that our  audits provide a reasonable basis for our  opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statem en ts referred to above present fairly
, in all m aterial respects, the finan cial 

position of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagement Agency - Acciden t and Health Fund as of December 31
, 

2002 and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The accompan ying finan cial statements have been prepared assuming the Fund will continue as a going 
concern. The Fund has experienced sign ificant losses from operations and has a substan tial deficit at 
December 31, 2002. These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Fun d's ability to continue as a going 
concern. M anagem en t's plans regarding these m atters are discussed Note 6 to th e financial statem ents. The 
accompanying financial statements do not include an y adjustm ents that might result for the outcome of this 
un certainty. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 18, 2003, on 
our consideration of the Fund's intern al control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with 
eertain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant s. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Jun e 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIANA M UN ICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Reinsurance receivable 

AC CID EN T AND  H EALTH  

BALAN CE SH EETS 
D ECEM BER  31. 2002 

2002 2001 

$ 87,133 
597,332 
1,354 
49,850 
353,934 

$ 1,089.603 

DEFICIT 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Accounts payable 

Due to affiliates (note 2) 

Accum ulated deficit 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 

- 2 

$ 1,552,000 
442,784 
129,298 

$ 84,868 
840,105 
7,973 

239,281 
625,332

. 

$ 1,552,000 
367,919 
103,287 

2,124,082 2,023,206 

(1,034,479) (225,647) 

$ 1.089.603 



A GENCY 
A CCID EN T AND H EALTH  FUND  

F 
IN  ACCUM U LATED DEFICIT 

YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

REVENUES: 
Premium  incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prem ium s 

Service agent fees (note 2) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
M iscellan eous 

Accumulated deficit, beginning of year 

Accum ulated deficit, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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2002 2001 

10,022,449 
26.313 

9,318,366 
909,319 
607,744 
17,173 
4,992 

9,854,584 
65.162 

9.919.746 

8,722,083 
728,870 
497,331 
17,060 
7.001 

(808,832) (52,599) 

(225,647) (173,048) 

$ (1,034,479) $ (225,647)
. 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M A NAGEM ENT AGENCY 
FUN D 

STATEM ENTS OF CASH  FLO W S 
AN D 2001 

Cash flow s from  operating activities: 
Net loss 

Less adjustment for investm ent income 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net 
cash used in operations: 
Change in reinsurance receivable 
Change in receivables 
Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Chan ge in accounts payable, and 
due to affi liates 

Total adjustments 

2002 2001 

(808,832) 
(26,313) 

$ (52,599) 
(65,162) 

(835,145) (117,761) 

271,398 
189,429 

100.876 

561.703 

(339,103) 
(171,867) 
(68,000) 

172.125 

Net cash used in operating activities (273,442) (524,606) 

Cash flow s from  investing activities: 
Purchase of investm ents 
Proceeds from  sales/m aturities of investm en ts 
Investm ent interest received 

N et cash provided by investing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 
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(203,756) 
439,457 
40.006 

275.707 

2,265 

84.868 

87.133 

(858,314) 
1,337,931 
69,287 

548.904 

24,298 

60,570 

$ 84,868 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AN D HE ALTH  FUND 

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNI FICANT ACCO UNTING POLICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program  of workers' compensation, accident and health, and public liability 
coverage for its m ember organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local 
govern ment subdivi sions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The Accident and 
Health Fund's (the Fund) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of 
the member local govern m ental subdivisions, a program  of intedocal risk management, to obtain 
lower costs for that coverage, an d to develop a comprehensive loss control progr am . Local 
governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal 
Association; a member ma y withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fun d underwriting 
and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the Fund after consultation with the 
actuaries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, m embers would only be responsible for 
their respective outstanding claim s. 

Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is 
incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of th e State of Louisian a. LM A acts as the 
adm inistrator for the Fun d. 

Risk Man agement, Inc. (RM I) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRM A insuran ce funds 
RM I, a Louisiana Corporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA) was formed under Louisian a Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interloeal risk man agement agencies pooling excess fun ds to 
provide reinsuran ce. Administration of the A gency is vested in the Executive Board of LM A . As of 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, there were 65 participating municipalities with a total number of 
participan ts of approxima tely 2,370. 

The various LM RM A Fun ds, LM A and RM I ar e all affi liated through comm on membership and 
m anagem ent control. Although all of these entities are related parties, their various retained 
earnings are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason, each entity is 
presented as a separ ate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GASB 10 an d GA SB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterprise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual m ethod of accounting 
an d the flow of economic resources measurement focus. The Fun d applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncem ents issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations un less 
those pronouncem ents conflict with  or contradict GASB pronoun cem ents. 

- 5 - 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M A NAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AND HEALTH  FUND 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENT S 

1. SIGNIFICANT  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 
Investments are reported at estim ated fair value except for short-term  and money market 
investm ents, consisting prim arily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year or less at 
tim e of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last rep orted sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized and unrealized gains 
and losses on investments recorded at fair value are included in investm ent income. In vestm ents 
include money market accounts, rep urchase agreements and U .S. governm ent Agency obligations 
and U.S. treasury securities. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Premium s are recognize d as incom e over the term  of the policies as they becom e earned. Any 
adjustm ents to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate and are recogn ized in the 
year they becom e known. 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve for 
bad debts has been established. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 

The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including 
future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported but not settled and of claims that have 
been incurred but not reported. The length of time for which such costs must be estimated varies 
dep ending on the coverage involved. Estimated amounts of reinsurance recoverable on un paid 
claim s ar e deducted from the liability for unpaid claim s. Because actual claim s costs depend on 
such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, an d dam age awards, the 
process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amoun t. Claims 
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial an d statistical techniques to 
produce curren t estim ates that reflect recent settlem ents, claim s frequency, and other econom ic and 
social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estim ated futu re claim s costs is implicit 
in the calculation because relian ce is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation 
and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustmen ts 
to claim s liabilities are charged or credited to expenses in the period in which they are made. The 
carrying am oun t of liabilities for claim s losses and claims expenses is presented at the estimated 
claim amounts in the financial statem ents. 

09 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statem ents of cash flows, cash in cludes cash in dem and deposit accoun ts 
with banks. Because money m arkets and repurchase agreem ents ar e usually purchased with 
m aturities of 90 days or m ore or are reinvested continuously, they are classified as investm ents. 

- 6 



A 
ACCIDENT AND HEALTH F 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(g) Reinsurance 

The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Further 
description of the reinsurance coverage is described in Note 5. Reinsurance permits recovery of a 
portion of losses from reinsur ers, although it does not discharge the prim ary  liability of the Fund as 
direct insurer of the risks reinsur ed. The Fund does not report reinsured risks  as liabilities un less it 
is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. Claim s expense consists of claim s 
incurred during the current year, adjustments to the accounting estimate of prior years' claims 
expense and a reduction for claims covered by the reinsurer in accordance with the reinsurance 
policy. 

(It) Income Taxes 

Th e Fund is exempt from federal income taxes un der Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(i) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of th e Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to th e reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prepare these finan cial statem ents in conform ity with accoun ting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could differ from 
those estim ates and assumptions. For example, significant estim ates and assumptions ar e used in 
estim ating its insurance liabilities, fair values of investments and accruals. If future experience 
differs m aterially for these estima tes and assumptions, the financial statem ents could be affected. 

2. RELA TED P 

LM A an d RM I provide services related to th e self-insurance fu nds operated for the benefit of Louisian a 
m un icipalities. The fees incurred by th e Fun d for these services and related balances owed are as follows: 

Expenses: 

Administrative fees - LMA ($.60 per 
person per month) 

Service agent fees - RM I ($20.25 in 2002 
and $16.50 in 2001 for health and 
$1.20 for dental participants) 

Due to affiliates 
LM A 
RM I 

7 

2001 

$ 607:744 $ 497.331 

$ 1,454 
127.844 

$ 1,424 
101,863 



CIPAL RISK M ANA 
A 

N OTES TO  FINANCIAL STATE M ENTS 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY 

The following represents changes in the Fund's aggregate unpaid claim s liabilities for the years ended 
December 31, 2002 and 2001 : 

2002 2001 

(Amoun ts in thousands) 

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
expenses liability at beginning of year $ 1,552 $ 1,620 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment 
expense-provision for insured events 9,318 8,722 

Less paym ents - claim s an d claim 

adjustment expenses 

Unpaid claims liability, end of year $ 1,552 $ 1,552 

Settled claim s have not exceeded aggregate insur ance coverages in any of the past three fiscal years. 

4. DEPO SITS AND  INVE STM ENTS 

The Fund m ust com ply with Rule Number 4 of the Com missioner of Insuran ce, State of Louisian a. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in fm ancial institutions m ade by these funds shall be lim ited to 
institutions in Louisiana un less a higher rate can be obtained in an out-of-state institu tion. Dep osits in 
financial institutions may exceed the federally insured am ount in an y one finan cial institution, as long as 
the am ount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided 
profits and reserves as currently rep orted by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and 
investm ents, the Fun d is in compliance with these revised provisions as of and during the period ended 
December 31, 2002 an d 2001. 

All dem and deposits an d certificates of deposit are insured or collateralized by pledged securities held by 
an agent in the nam e of the Fun d. 

2002 2001 

Insured 
Uninsur ed 

- 8 - 

87,133 $ 84,868 

87,133 $ 84.868 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AND H EALTH  FUND 

N 

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comrm ssioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana, the Fund m ay invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U.S. Govern m ent and its agencies, as well as finan cial institutions. 
In cluded in investm ents are m oney m arket accounts, repurchase agreem ents, U .S. Govern m ent Agency 
obligations and U .S. Treasury securities. 

The Fund's investm ents are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assum ed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by th e Fund or its agent in the Fund's nam e. Category  2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the secur ities are held by th e broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Fund's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investm en ts for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust departm ent or agent, 
but not in the Fund's name. The amortized cost of the Fun d's investm en ts are $588,662 an d $829,068 at 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Th e estimated fair value of investm ents by security type at 
December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows: 

M oney m arket accounts and 
repur chase agr eem en ts 
U .S. Governm ent A gency obligations 
U .S. Treasury  securities 

2002 2001 Category  

262,238 
309,422 
25.672 

$ 
222,761 
617,344 

840.105 

1 
1 

Th e money market accoun ts and repur chase agr eements are insured or collateralized by obligations of the 
U.S. Government, registered in the name of and held by the Fund's agent. 

The scheduled m aturities of investm ents held were as follows at December 31, 2002 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five years 

Am ortized 
Cost 

$ 412,583 
176,079 

Estim ated Fair 
Value 

$ 414,441 
182,891 

- 9- 



4. D 

LOUISIANA M U NICIPAL RISK  M A NAG EM ENT AGENCY 
ACCIDENT AN D HEALTH  FUND 

NOTES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 

(continued) 
Investm ent incom e for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 consists of the following: 

Interest incom e 
Realized gains (losses) - net 
Unrealized gains (losses) arising during the year 

5. REIN SURA N CE PO LICY CO VER A GE 

2002 

$ 28,032 
648 

( 2,367) 
$ 26.313 

2001 

$ 54,275 
( 610) 

11,497 
$ 65.162 

The Fund and its reinsurers represent a cooperative program  for group funding and risk m anagem ent of 
accident an d health claims of participating Louisiana municipalities. Although prem ium s billed to the 
participants are determ in ed on an  actuarial basis, ultim ate liability for claim s rem ains with the 
participants, and the Fund has the authority to assess the participants to fund any deficits incurred. 

Subsequent to December 31, 1994, th e Fund obtained reinsur ance from  a com m ercial insurer to 
provide the following coverage: 

Item  l: 

Item  II 

Annual aggr egate in excess of 125%  of annual earned norm al prem ium . 

$900,000 each an d every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss. 

Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, the Fund obtained reinsurance from LM RFA and discontinued its 
com m ercial insur er reinsurance coverages. 

The Fund's financial statem ents have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in th e United States of Am erica which contemplate continuation of the Fund as a going 
concern. However, at December 31, 2002, th e Fund reported a deficit of $1,034,479 and incurred net 
losses of $808,832 and $52,599 for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The 
Fund's cash and investm ents also decreased to $684,465 at December 31, 2002. 

Th e Fun d has continued to implement premium rate increases and benefit reductions each year in order 
to meet the continued increase in claim s cost an d m edical inflation. M an agem ent implem ented 
additional rate increases and m ember benefits reductions effective January  1, 2003 as well as changed 
its reinsurer as measur es to return  the Fund to profitability. M anagement expects that continued 
prem ium  increases and reductions in covered benefits wilt be implem ented sufficient to return the Fund 
to profitability and to elim inate the Fun d's deficit over a reasonable period of tim e. However, no 
assurances can be given that the Fund can  achieve near term profitability and cash flow improvement 
or that the deficit can be elim inated in a m an ageable period of tim e. 

If the Fund's assets become exhausted or the Fund is un able to meet its obligations as they become 
due, participating m embers would becom e responsible for their respective outstanding claim s 
obligations. 

-  10- 



Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounffng Corporation 

Associated Offices in Principal Cities oJ the United States 

www.pncpa.corn 

_ .Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

n A ccordance with Governm ent Auditine Standards 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency 

Accident and Health Fund 

W e have audited the finan cial statem ents of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agement Agency - Accident an d 
Health Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated Jun e 18

, 

2003. W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America an d the standards applicable to the finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards

, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assur ance about whether th e Fund's finan cial statemen ts are free of material 
misstatement, we perform ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d 
grants, noncomplian ce with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of finan cial 
statement amoun ts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our  audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an  opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

trol Over F 

In plarming an d perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order 
to determ ine our auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statem ents and 
not to provide assuran ce on the internal control over financial reporting. Our  consideration of the internal control 
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m aters in the internal control over finan cial reporting 
that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of orLe or 
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that m isstatem ents in 
am ounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statements being audited m ay occur and not be 
detected within a tim ely period by employees in the norm al course of perform ing their assigned functions

. W e 
noted no matters involving the intern al control over financial reporting and its operation th at we consider to be 
m aterial weaknesses. 

Th is report is intended solely for the information and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - 
Accident and Health Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Offi ce and the Louisiana Com m issioner of 
Insur ance and is not intended to 

June 18, 2003 

be an d should not be used by an yone other than these specified parties. 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Assodafed Offices in Principal Cities of the United States 

www.pncpa.com 

UD ITO R S' 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agem ent Agency 

Public Liability Fund 

W e have audited the accompanying balan ce sheets of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
Public Liability Fund (a quasi-public organ ization) (the Fun d) as of December 3 l, 2002 and 2001, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then 
ended. These finan cial statements are the responsibility of the Fun d's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an  opinion on these financial statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and with Government Auditing Standard~, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Th ose standards require that we plan  an d perform the audits to obtain reasonable assur an ce about whether the 
finan cial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the am ounts an d disclosures in the financial statem ents. An audit also includes assessing the 
accoun ting principles used and significan t estim ates m ade by m an agem ent, as well as evaluating th e overall 
finaneial statement presentation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our  opinion, the financial statem ents referred to  above present fairly, in  all m aterial respects, th e finan cial 
position of Louisian a M un icipal Risk M anagement Agency - Public Liability Fun d as of December 31, 2002 
an d 2001, an d the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conform ity with  
accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United States of An aerica. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a rep ort, dated Jun e 18, 2003, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our  tests of its complian ce with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d grants. 

Our  audits were m ade for the purpose of form ing an opinion on th e basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. The supplem entary inform ation included on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional an alysis 
and is not a required part of the basic finan cial statements. The inform ation presented for the year s ended 
December 31, 2002 and 2001 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the 
financial statem ents and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial respects in relation to the basic 
financial statem ents taken as a whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
Jun e 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGEN CY 

Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Deductibles receivable 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

Reinsurance receivable (note 3) 
Note receivable (note 2) 

PUBLIC LIABILITY 

BALANCE SHEETS 
DECEM BER 31. 2002 AN'[ 

A S S E T S 

2002 2001 

49,784 
12,795,160 

267,443 
582,410 
129,980 
657,280 

$ 309,005 
12,441,407 

181,290 
497,663 
111,438 
62,742 
396,890 

$ 14,482,057 $ 14,000.435 

L IA B IL IT IE S A N D R E T A IN E D E A R N IN G S 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned prem ium s 

Due to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accru ed expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accompan ying notes to finan cial statem ents 

- 2 - 

7,516,000 
1,711,334 
934,296 
23,285 

$ 7,429,000 
1,490,912 

307,633 
35,369 

10,184,915 9,262,914 

4,297,142 4.737.521 

$ 14,000,435 



LOUISIANA M UNI A 
PUBLIC LIABILITY 

STATEM ENTS OF REVENUES, EXPEN SES AND C[IANGES IN RETAINED EARNING S 
YEAR S END ED DECEM BER 31, 2002 AND  2001 

REVENU ES 

Premium incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance premiums (note 2) 
Service agent fees (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

N et loss 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accompanying notes to finan cial statem ents 

- 3- 

2002 2001 

$ 5,949,375 
1,286,423 

$ 5,479,930 
1.067.102 

7,235,798 6,547,032 

4,423,65O 
727,485 

1,496,542 
997,695 
30.805 

7.676.177 

4,299,077 
638,244 

1,312,959 
875,306 
26,232 

7.151.818 

(440,379) (604,786) 

4,737,521 5,342,307 

$ 4,297,142 $ 4,737,521 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

STATEM ENTS OF CASH FLOW S 
2001 

Cash flow s from  operating activities: 
Net loss 

Less adjustment for investment income 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net 
cash used in operations: 
Change in receivables 
Change in unpaid claims liability 
Change in  accrued expenses, unearned 
prem iums and due to affiliates 

Total adjustments 

2002 2001 

(440,379) 
(1,286,423) 

$ (604,786) 
(1,067,102) 

(1,726,802) (1,671,888) 

(170,900) 
87,000 

240.463 

(412,279) 
41,000 

156,563 (295,992) 

Net cash used in operating activities (1,570,239) (1,967,880) 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from  sales and m aturity of investm ents 
Investm ent inter est received 
Principal paym ents from note receivable 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 

- 4 

(5,855,827) 
6,130,497 
639,458 
396.890 

1.311.018 

(259,221) 

309.005 

49.784 

(6,027,285) 
6,938,611 
847,330 
212,147 

1.970.803 

2,923 

306.082 

309.005 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

N OTES TO FINANCIAL  STATEM ENT S 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) was formed under Louisiana Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of workers' compensation, accident an d health, and public liability 
coverage for its member organ izations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local 
governm ent subdivi sions in the State of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The LM RM A Public 

Liability Fun d's (the Fun d) general objectives are to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf 
of the m em ber local governm ental subdivisions, a program  of interlocal risk managem ent, to obtain 
lower costs for that coverage, an d to develop a comprehensive loss control progr am . Local 
governmental subdivisions joining the Fund must be members of the Louisiana Municipal 
Association; a m ember ma y with draw from  th e Fund by giving proper notice. Fun d un derwriting 
and rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of the Fun d after consultation with th e 
actuaries. If th e assets of th e Fun d wer e to be exhausted, m embers would only be responsible for 
th eir respective outstanding claim s. As of December 31, 2002 an d 2001, there were 201 an d 186 
participating m unicipalities, respectively. 

Louisiana Mun icipal Association (LMA) is an  association for the municipalities of Louisiana and is 
incorporated as a nonprofit corp oration under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as th e 
administrator for th e Fun d. 

Risk Man agem ent, Inc. (R_M1) is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insuran ce ftmds. 
RM I, a Louisian a Colporation, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

Louisian a Mun icipal Reserve Fun d Agency (LMRFA) was form ed under Louisiana Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk man agement agencies pooling excess funds to 
provide reinsurance. Administration of the Agency is vested in th e Executive Board of LM A . 
LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A Public Liability Fund. 

The var ious LM RM A mad LM RFA Funds, LM A and RM I ar e all affi liated through comm on 
m ember ship and ma nagem ent control. Although all of these entities are related par ties, th eir various 
fund balances are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason, each 
entity is pr esented as a separate "stand alone" en tity in accordance with GASB 10 and GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fun d is considered an enterp rise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual m ethod of accounting 
and the flow of economic resources m easurem en t focus. Th e Fund applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncem ents issued on or before Novem ber 30, 1989 in accoun ting for its operations unless 
those pronouncem ents conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncem ents. 
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PU BLIC LIABILITY FUND 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Investm ents are reported at estimated fair value except for short-term and m oney m arket 
investm ents, consisting prim arily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a maturity of one year or less at 
tim e of purchase, which are rep orted at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized an d unrealized gains 
and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm ent incom e. Investm ents 
include m oney m arket accounts, repurchase agreem ents, U .S. Govern m ent Agency obligations and 
U .S. Treasury securities and are held for long-term  purposes. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 

Premium s are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any 
adjustm ents to annual premiums are considered to be a change in estimate an d are recognized in the 
year  they becom e known. 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; therefore, no reserve for 
bad debts has been  established. 

(e) Unpaid Claims Liability 
The Fund provides liability coverage to members for claims incurred during the benefit period 
regar dless of when the claims are reported to th e Fun d. The Fun d establishes claims liabilities based 
on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have 
been reported but not settled and of claim s that have been incurred but not rep orted. The len gth of 
tim e for which such costs m ust be estim ated varies dep ending on the coverage involved. Estim ated 
amoun ts of reinsur ance recover able on unpaid claims  are deducted from the liability for unpaid 
claim s. Because actual claim s costs depend on such com plex factors as inflation, chan ges in 
doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability does 
not necessarily result in an exact am ount, particularly for coverages such as gen eral liability. Claims  
liabilities ar e recom puted per iodically using a variety of actu arial and statistical techniques to 
produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, an d other economic and 
social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estim ated future claims costs is implicit 
in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation 
and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustm ents 
to claim s liabilities are charged or credited to expense in th e period in which they are m ade. Th e 
costs associated with new and renewal contracts as acquisition costs ar e imm aterial to the finan cial 
statements and are expensed when incurred. The carrying am ount of liabilities for claims losses and 
claim s expenses is presented at the estim ated claim am ounts in the financial statem ents. Claim s 
reserves have been  discounted at 5.8% at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 

For the purposes of the statem ents of cash flows, cash includes cash in dem and deposit accounts 
with banks. Because certificates of deposit, money m arkets an d repur chase agr eem ents are usually 
purchased with m aturities of 90 days or m ore, th ey are classified as investments. 

- 6- 
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NOTES TO  FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

SIGNIFICAN T A CCOUN TING POLICIE.._~_S (continued) 

(g) Reinsurance 
The Fund uses reinsurance to reduce its exposure to large losses on insured events. Reinsurance 
perm its recovery of a portion of losses from  reinsurers, although it does not discharge the prim ary 
liability of the Fund as direct insurer of the risks reinsured. The Fund does not report reinsured 
risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers. As of M ay 
1, 1986, LM RFA becam e the reinsurer for the Fund. 

(h) Income Taxes 
The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has m ade a number of estimates and assumptions relating to th e reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prepare th ese finan cial statem en ts in conform ity with accounting 
principles gen erally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could differ from  
th ose estim ates and assumptions. For example, significant estim ates and assumptions are used in 
estim ating its insurance liabilities, fair values of investm ents an d accruals. If future experience 
differs m aterially for th ese estim ates an d assumptions, the finan cial statem ents could be affected. 

Reclassifications 

Certain item s in the 2001 financial statem ents have been reclassified to be com parative to th e 2002 
presen tation. 

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a) Fees and Services 

LM A , RM I and LM RFA provide services related to the self-insur ance funds operated for the benefit 
of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective 
earned standard premiums (ESP) as follows: 

Expenses (and current fee structure): 
A dm inistrative fee - LM A 

(8.75% of ESP) 
Service agent - RM1 (12.0% of ESP) 
Reinsurance - LMRFA ( 18.0% of ESP) 

Reinsurance recoveries from  LM RFA 

Due to (from) affiliates 
LM A 
RM I 
LM RFA 

- 7- 

2002 2001 

$ 727.485 
$_ 997.695 
$ 1.496.542 
$ 1.740.730 

$ 487,485 
223,138 
223,673 

$ 934.296 

$ 638,244 

L _L3!2)59 
$ 943.340 

398,244 
174,903 

( .265 514) 
$ 307 633 



A M UNICIPAL 

N 

PUBLIC LIABILITY FUN D 

2. RELATED PARTY TRAN SA CTION S 

(b) Note Receivable 

(continued) 

LM A had a variable rate note agreement with the Fund. The note bears an interest rate equal to the 
average investm ent return yielded by the Fund on its other investments at December 31, 2001. LM A 
made m onthly paym ents of $20,425 due the first day of each month based on a 360 month 
am ortization. Collateral for this note was a building owned by LM A . Th e Fund earned in terest of 
$16,062 and $32,948 in respect to the note for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 200L 
respectively. During 2002, LM A  repaid the rem aining balance of this note. 

(c) Premium Rebates 

During 2002, the Fund's participants used $2,200 of unearned credits. During 2001, the Fund's 
participan ts used $89,605 of unearned credits. This amount is included in un earned premium s at 
December 31, 2001 an d was recognized as premium  incom e during 2002. 

CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UN PAID CLAIM S LIABILITY 

The following represents chan ges in the aggregate unpaid claims liabilities for the Fund for th e years 
ended December 31, 2002 an d 2001: 

2002 2001 

(Amoun ts in thousands) 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related to: 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

N et paid related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 
Reinsur ance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 

- 8 

$ 14,940 
7,511 
7,429 

3,423 
1 001 
4.424 

693 
3,644 
4.337 

16,957 
9.441 

$ 7.516 

$ 13,942 
6,554 
7,388 

3,243 
1,056 
4,299_  

578 
3,68_00 
4,258 

14,940 
7,511 

$_  7,422 



LOUISIA NA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
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NO TES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY (continued) 

In addition to the unpaid claim s covered by the Fund's reinsurer, there are $657,280 and $62,742 of paid 
claims which are recoverable from the reinsurer at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

The Fun d's claim s payable have been discounted for December 31, 2002 and 2001, based on the Fund's 
an ticipated payout patterns and a discount rate assumption of 5.8%  which m an agement expects to 
approximate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve discounts was 
$681,000 and $776,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

DEPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

The Fund must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions made by these agencies shall be limited 
to institu tions in Louisiana un less a higher rate can  be obtained in an  out-of-state institu tion. Deposits in 
financial institutions m ay exceed th e federally insured amoun t in any one finan cial institution, as long as 
the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combin ation of surplus, un divided 
profits an d reserves as currently reported by the financial institution in question. In  regard to dep osits an d 
investm ents, the Fun d is in complian ce with th ese revised provisions as of and during the period ended 
December 31, 2002 and 2001. 

Th e dema nd deposits are categorized below to give an indication of th e level of risk assumed at year end. 
"In sur ed" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insurance or pledged collateral. 
"Uninsured" dep osits are those balances in excess of federal depository insurance or pledged collatera l. 

2002 2001 

In sur ed 
Uninsur ed 

49,784 $ 309,005 

49,784 $ 309.005 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of In surance, State of Louisian a, the Fund may invest an y 
surplus monies in obligations of the U .S. Government and its agencies, as well as financial institutions. 
Included in investm ents are certificates of deposit, money mar ket accounts and repur chase agreem en ts. 

9 
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(continued) 

The Fund's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assum ed by the 
Fun d at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's nam e. Category  2 
includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust department or agent in the Fun d's name. Category 3 includes un insured and unregistered 
investments for which the secur ities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, 
but not in the Fund's name. The amortized cost of the Fund's investm ents are $12,007,698 an d 
$12,212,571 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The estimated fair value of investm ents by 
security type at December 31, 2002 and 2001 are as follows: 

M oney m arket accounts 
U.S. Government Agency obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

2002 

$ 114,878 
12,614,876 

65,406 

2001 

$ 495,685 
11,886,581 

59,141 

$ 12~ 795.160 $12.441.4077 

Category 

1 
1 

The U.S. Govern m ent Agency obligation investments are direct obligations registered in the name of the 
Fun d an d held by the Fund's investment agent. The repurchase agreement, certificates of deposits, cash 
and m oney m arkets are collateralized by obligations of th e U .S. Governm ent registered in the nam e of and 
held by th e Fun d's agent. 

Included in investm ent balances are derivative financial investm ents. Th ese investmen ts may include U.S. 
Treasury strips, eollateralized m ortgage obligations, and floating rate securities. Th ese derivative 
investm en ts are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience future m arket fluctuations. 

Th e scheduled contractual maturities of investm ents held at December 31, 2002 are shown below. 
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or paym ent pen alties. 

Due in one year  
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten  year s 

I0 

Am ortized Estim ated Fair 
Cost V alue 

$ 114,878 
5,536,545 
2,973,925 
3,382,350 

$ 12.007.6988 $ 12.795~ 160 
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(continued) 

Investm ent income for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 consists of the following: 

2002 2001 

Interest incom e 
Realized gains - net 
Unrealized gains arising during the year - net 

5. REIN SUR ANCE POLICY COVERA GE 

$ 665,989 
61,809 
558,625 

$ 833,232 
116,323 
117,547 

During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, LM RFA provided reinsurance to LM RM A Public 
Liability Fund with  the follow ing lim its: 

Item I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate excess of 65%  of earned normal prem ium 

Item II: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every loss 

The Fund and LM RFA represent a cooperative progr am  for group funding an d risk m an agem ent of public 
liability claim s of participating Louisian a municipalities. Although prem ium s billed to th e participan ts are 
determined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for claims remains with the participan ts. 

Prior to 1993, Louisiana law limited the liability of the municipalities to $500,000 per occurrence. During 
1993, th e Louisiana Suprem e Court revoked this lim it. The above "specific reinsurance limits" for the 
Pu blic Liability Fund cover claims up to $500,000. As of November 1, 1995, the statutory  liability 
increased to $750,000 from $500,000. The Fun d's coverage remains unchanged. 

Th e following are condensed balance sheets for LM RFA at December 31, 2002 and 2001: 

2002 2001 

A ssets 
Liabilities 

Retained Earnings 

$ 39,476,960 
( 14,867,510) 

$ 36,076,882 
( 13,052,685) 

$ 24.609,450 $ 23.024.197 



 

SCHEDULE 

DECEM BER 31, 2002 

The table below illns trates the Fund's earned normal premium and investment income compared to related costs and claims expellse 
(net of loss assumed by reinsurers) incurred by the Fund as of the end of 2002 and as of the end of each of the last nine years. 

2002 2001 2000 999 1998 1997 1996 O) 1995 
~ o~"~d'~ 

ENP and investment 
income $ 7,236 $ 6,547 $ 6,724 $ 5,923 $ 7,416 $ 8,198 $ 7,729 $ 7,605 $ 7,179 $ 7,170 

Operafingcosts 
unalIoca~d 3,253 2,853 2,766 2,438 3,452 3,497 3,499 3,376 3,213 3,247 

Estinxated  incurred 
claims and claims 
expense, end of 
policy year 4,686 3,753 2,999 2,988 4,039 4,545 4,583 4,243 3,976 3,930 

Paid (cmnulative) 
as of: 
End of policy 
year 693 
One year later 
Two ~eals later 
Three y~rs later 
Four years later 
Five years later 
Six years later 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

Re-estimated  incurred 
clairas and claims 

578 
1,358 

499 
1,079 
1,804 

460 
1,341 
2,574 
3.189 

687 
1,354 
2,528 
3,228 
3,604 

655 
1,362 
2,343 
3,146 
3,570 
3,865 

630 
1,379 
2,137 
2,999 
3,432 
3,765 
3,838 

expense: 
End of policy 
year 4,686 3,753 2,999 2,988 4,039 4,545 4,583 
One year later 3,812 3,225 3,633 3,950 4,545 4,583 
Two years later 3,062 3,917 4,065 3,769 4,583 
Three years later 3,991 4,140 3,969 3,763 
Four years later 4,281 4,136 4,044 
Five years later 4,251 4,062 
Six years later 4,139 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine years later 

463 
1,216 
2,815 
3,524 
3,696 
4,174 
4,202 
4,390 

4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4,243 
4,117 
4,436 
4,456 
4,570 

528 
1,625 
2,482 
3,119 
3,400 
3,510 
3,630 
3,710 
3.786 

3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,976 
3,782 
3,839 
3,853 
3,909 

409 
1,105 
2,019 
2,575 
3,027 
3,286 
3,348 
3,423 
3,433 
3,424 

3,930 
3,930 
3,930 
3,930 
3,930 
3,930 
3,491 
3,535 
3,525 
3.477 

Increase(decrease) in 
estimated incurred claims 
and expense ffoln 
end of policy 
year 59 63 1,003 242 (294) (444) 327 (67) (453) 

(1) Effective January 1,1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Renort on Com nliance and on Internal Control Over Financial 
P 

in A cco 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency 

Public Liability Fund 

W e have audited the financial statements of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagement Agency - Public Liability 
Fund as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, an d have issued our report thereon dated June 18, 2003. 
W e conducted our audit in aceordartce with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of th e United States. 

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material 
m isstatem ent, w e perform ed tests of its com pliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determ ination of finan cial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opin ion. The results of our  tests disclosed no instan ces of 
noncompliance th at are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

nternal Control Over Finan cial Reoortine 

In planning and perform ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in order 
to determ ine our auditing procedures for th e purpose of expressing our  opinion on the financial statem ents an d 
not to provide assuran ce on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control 
over finan cial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m aters in the intern al control over financial reporting 
that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or 
more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in 
am ounts th at w ould be m aterial in relation to the financial statem ents being audited m ay occur and not be 
detected within a tim ely period by employees in the norm al cour se of performing their assign ed functions. W e 
noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial rep orting and its operation that we consider to be 
m aterial weaknesses. 

This report is intended solely for th e inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
Public Liability Fund, the Louisian a Legislative Auditor's Office an d the Louisian a Com missioner of Insurance, 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agem ent Agency 

W orkers' Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the accom panying balance sheets of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - 

W orkers' Compensation Fund (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, 
and the related statem ents of reven ues, expen ses and chan ges in retained earnings, and cash flow s for the 
years then ended. These fnancial statements are the responsibility of the Fund's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these finan cial statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our  audits in accordance with auditing standar ds generally accepted in the United States of 
America and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those stan dards require that we plan an d perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about wheth er the 
financial statem ents ar e free of m aterial misstatem en t. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan cial statem ents. An  audit also includes assessing th e 
accounting principles used and significant estimates m ade by managem ent, as well as evaluating th e overall 
financial statement presen tation. W e believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our  opinion, the financial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all m aterial respects, tile financial 
position of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agement Agency - W orkers' Compensation Fund as of 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, an d the results of its operations an d its cash flows for the years then ended in 
conform ity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 18, 2003, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its complian ce w ith 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our audits were for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
Th e supplem entary inform ation included on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statem ents. The inform ation presented for the years ended 
December 31, 2002 and 2001, has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statem ents and in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

/ 
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8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



LOUISIAN A M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 

Investments (note 4) 
Accounts receivable 

Reinsurance receivable (note 3) 
Due from affi liates - net (note 2) 
Accrued interest receivable 

'ENSATIO N 

BALAN CE SHEETS 
DECEM BER 31.2002 AND 2001 

ASSETS 

2002 

$ 29,382,241 
1,631,700 
115,824 

329,513 

2001 

$ 25,932,446 
1,423,115 
250,343 
588,890 
316,395 

$ 31,459,278 $ 28,511,189 

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNIN G S 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned premium s 

Due to affiliates - net (note 2) 
Accounts payable an d accrued expen ses 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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$ 4,083,000 
582,562 
260,339 
879,271 

$ 4,295,000 
464,409 

888.765 

5,805,172 5,648,174 

25.654,106 

$ 31,459,278 $ 28,511,189 



CIPAL RISK  M ANAG EM ENT A 
W ORK ERS' CO M PENSATION FUND 

STATEM ENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHA NGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

RE VEN UES 

YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

Prem ium incom e 

Investment income (note 4) 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Administrative fees (note 2) 
Service agent fees (note 2) 
Reinsurance premiums (note 2) 
Second Injury Fund assessment 
Office of W orkers' Com pensation assessm ent 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

N et incom e 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained eam ings, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 
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2002 2001 

$ 4,283,725 
2,527 146 

6.810.871 

2,326,464 
472,958 
540,524 
378,367 
200,626 
52,002 
48,839 

4.019.780 

$ 3,585,987 
1,979,856 

2,683,703 
367,229 
419,691 
293,783 
295,433 
40,674 
34,931 

4.135.444 

2,791,091 1,430,399 

22,863,015 21,432,616 

$ 25.654.106 $ 22.863.015 



A G EN 
W ORK ER S' COM PENSATION FUND 

STATEM EN TS OF CASH FLO W S 
YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

Cash flows from  operating activities: 
Net incom e 

Less adjustment for investment income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to 
net cash provided by (used in) operations: 
Change in receivables and reinsurance receivable 
Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Change in accounts payable, accrued expenses 
uunearned premium s an d due from  affiliates 

Total adjustments 

2002 2001 

2,791,091 

(2,527,146) 

263.945 

(74,066) 
(212,000) 

957.888 

671.822 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 935,767 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 
Investm ent interest received 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from  sales and m aturities of investments 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 

N et chan ge in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 
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1,720,809 

(8,860,588) 
6,204,012 

$ 1,430,399 
(1,979,856) 

(549,457) 

(319,994) 
513,000 

1.620 

1,606,877 

(25,942,276) 
24,883,236 

547.837 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M ANAG EM ENT AGEN 
W O RK ERS' COM PENSA TION FUND 

NO TES TO FIN AN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

SIG NIFICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentalion 

Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRM A) was formed under Louisian a Act No. 
462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's compensation, accident an d health, an d public liability 
coverage for its member organizations. In accordance with Revised Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local 
governm en t subdivisions in the state of Louisiana are eligible to participate. The LM RM A- 
W orkers' Compensation Fund (the Fund) general objectives arc to form ulate, develop, an d 
adm inister, on behalf of the m ember local governm ental subdivisions

, a progr am  of interlocal risk 
m anagemen t, to obtain low er costs for that coverage, and to develop a comprehensive loss control 
program. Local governmental subdivisions joining the fund must be members of the Louisiana 
M un icipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fund by giving proper notice. Fun d 
underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the board of the Fun d, after 
consultation with the actu aries. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, m em bers would only 
be responsible for their respective outstanding claim s. As of Decem ber 31, 2002 and 2001, there 
w ere 203 an d 185 participating municipalities, respectively. 

Louisiana Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisian a an d is 
incorporated as a nonprofit corp oration under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as the 
adm inistrator for LM RM A . 

Risk M anagement, Inc. (P-MO is a third-party service agent primarily for LMRMA insurance fimds. 
RM I, a Louisiana Corp oration, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LMA . 

Louisian a Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA) was formed under Louisian a Revised Statutes 
33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interloeal risk management agencies pooling excess funds to 
provi de reinsurance. Adm inistration of the Agency is vested in the Executive Board of LM A . 

LM RFA reinsures the LM RM A W orkers' Compensation Fund. 

The various LM RM A an d LM RFA Funds, LM A and RM I are all affiliated through comm on 
m embership an d managem ent control. Although all of these en tities are related parties, their various 
retained earnings are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this reason each 
entity is presented as a separ ate "stand alone" entity in accordance with GA SB 10 and 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounang 
The Fund is considered an en terp rise fund and, accordingly

, uses the accrual m eth od of accoun ting 
and the flow of econom ic resources m easurem ent focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncem ents issued on or befer e Novem ber 30, 1989 in accounting for its operations unless 
those pronouncem ents conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncem ents. 
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LOUISIANA M U NICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT A GENCY 
W ORK ER S' CO M PENSATIO N FUND 

NO TES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

1[. SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 

Investm ents are reported at estimated fair value except for short-term  and m oney m arket 
investm ents, consisting prima rily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year  or less at 
tim e of purchase, which ar e reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized an d unrealized gains 
and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm ent income. In vestments 
include m oney m arket accounts, repurchase agreements and U .S. Govern m en t Agen cy and Treasury 
obligations. 

(d) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 

Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Any 
adjustments to annual premiums are considered to be a chan ge in estimate and are recogn ized in the 
year th ey becom e known. 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by management; ther efore, no reserve for 
bad debts has been established. 

The Fun d provides workers' com pensation coverage to m embers for claim s incurred during th e 
policy period regardless of when the claim s are reported to the Fund. The Fund establishes claim s 
liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustm ent 
expenses) that have been rep orted but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported. The length of tim e for which such costs m ust be estim ated varies dep ending on the 
coverage involved. Estim ated am ounts of reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claim s ar e deducted 
from the liability for unpaid claim s. Because actual claims costs dep end on such complex factors as 
inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards, the process used in computing 
claim s liability does not necessarily result in an exact am ount. Claim s liabilities are recomputed 
periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce curren t estimates that 
reflect recen t settlem ents, claims ~equency, and other economic and social factors. A provision for 
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims costs is implicit in th e calculation because 
reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past inflation and on other factors that 
are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience. Adjustm ents to claims liabilities are 
charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are ma de. The carrying am ount of 
liabilities for claim s losses and claim s expense are presented at present value in the financial 
statements. The costs associated with new and renewed contracts and acquisition costs are 
imm aterial to the financial statem ents and are expensed when incurred. Such reserves have been 
discoun ted at 5.8% at D ecember 31, 2002 and 200t, respectively. 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL R ISK  M AN AGEM ENT AG ENCY 
W  

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purposes of the statem ents of cash flows, cash includes cash in dem and deposit accounts 
with banks. Because money m arkets and repurchase agreem ents are usually purchased with 
maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments. 

(g) Reinsurance 
The Fund uses reinsurance agr eem ents to reduce its exposure to large losses on insur ed events. 
Reinsur ance perm its recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers, although it does not discharge 
the prim ary liability of the Fund as the direct insur er of the risks reinsured. The Fun d does not 
report reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by 
rein sur ers. As of M ay 1, 1986, LMRFA became the reinsurer for the Fund. 

(h) Income Taxes 

Th e Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Reven ue Code. 

(i) Insurance Related Assessments 

Th e Fund is subject to assessments made by the Second Injury Fund and the Office of W orkers' 
Colrrpensation based on benefits paid each year. Th e Fund recognizes these assessm ents as expense 
when related claim benefits are incurred rather than paid. Changes in assessment rates are adjusted 
in the year such inform ation is available. 

O') Use of Estimates 
M an agem en t of the Funds has m ade a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets and liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conform ity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could differ from those 
estim ates an d assumptions. For example, sign ificant estimates an d assumptions are used in 
estimating its insurance liabilities, fair values of investments and accru als. If future experience 
differs materially for these estim ates and assumptions, the financial statements could be affected. 

(k) Reclassifications 

Certain items in the 2001 financial statem ents have been reclassified to be comparative to the 2002 
presentation. 

- 7- 



AG ENCY 
W O  

NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEM ENTS 

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

LM A, RM I and LM RFA provides services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the benefit of 
Louisiana municipalities. The fees for these services are based on a percentage of the respective earned 
standard premiums (ESP) as follows: 

2002 2001 

Expenses (and current fee structure): 
Administrative fee - LMA (8.75% of ESP) $ 472,958 
Service Agent - RM I (10.0% of ESP) $ 540,524 
Reinsurance - LMRFA (7.0% of ESP) $ 378,367 

Reinsurance recoveries from LM RFA $ 413,192 

Due (to) from affiliate: 
LMA $ (172,958) 
RM I (39,385) 
LMRFA (47,996) 

$ 367,229 

$ 419,691 

$ 293,783 

$ 783,570 

$ (67,232) 
240,247 
415.875 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIABILITY 

588.890 

The following represents changesin ~ e aggregate liabilifiesforthe Fun d forthe years ended December 
31, 2002an d 2001: 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) 

Net incurred related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

Net paid related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 
Reinsurance recoverables 
Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 

- 8- 

2002 2001 
(Amountsin thousands) 

$ 9,107 $ 8,969 
4.812 5.187 
4,295 

1,959 
367 

2,326 

643 
1& ~895 

9,021 
4,938 

$ 4.083 

3.782 

1,544 
1.140 
2.684 

499 
1.672 
2.171 

9,107 
4,812 

$ 4.295 



LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M AN A GEM ENT AGENCY 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE 

TIO N 

NO TES TO FIN ANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

In addition to the unpaid claims covered by the reinsurers, there are $115,824 and $250,343 of paid claim s 
which are recoverable from the reinsurer at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

The Fund's claims payable have been discounted for December 31, 2002 and 2001, based on the Fund's 
anticipated payout patterns and a discount rate assumption of 5.8%  which management expects to 
approxim ate the interest earn ings over th e payout period. Th e effect of the reserve discounts was 
$923,000 and $926,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Th e Fun d must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in financial institutions m ade by these Fund's shall be lim ited to 
institu tions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can be obtained in an  out-of-state institution. Deposits in 
finan cial institutions may exceed the federally insured am oun t in an y one finan cial institution, as long as 
the amoun t is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, un divided 
profits and reserves as currently reported by th e financial institution. In  regard to deposits and 
investm ents, the Fund is in com plian ce with these revised provisions during the years ended December 31, 
2002 and 2001. 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of In suran ce, State of Louisiana, the Fund may invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U.S. Governm ent and its agen cies, as well as financial institu tions. 
Included in investmen ts are m oney market accounts and repurchase agreemen ts. During 1995, the Fund 
chan ged its policy of m aintaining a cash accoun t into wire-transferring cash as needed from investm ents to 
support disbursem ents. Consequently, a zero cash balance is now m aintained. 

The Fund's investm ents ar e categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fun d at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fun d or its agent in the Fund's nam e. Category 2 
includes uninsured an d unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by the broker's or 
dealer's trust departm ent or agent in the Fund's nam e. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent, 
but not in the Fund's name. The am ortized cost of the Fund's investments are $27,779,416 and 
$25,242,344 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Th e estimated fair value of investm ents by 
security type at December 31, 2002 an d 2001 are as follows: 

M oney m arket accoun ts 
U .S. Govern m ent Agency 

Obligations 
U .S. Treasury  obligations 

2002 2001 

1,298,687 $ 451,913 

11,152,085 
16.931.469 

$ 29,382,241 $ 

- 9- 

11,804,759 
13.675.774 

25.932.446 

Category 

1 
1 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK  M A NAGEM ENT A GENCY 
W ORKERS' COM PENSATIO N FUND 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS 

Included in investment balances as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are derivative investments. These 
investments included U .S. Treasury strips, collateralized m ortgage obligations, an d floating rate securities. 
Th ese derivative investm ents are interest rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience future market 
value fluctuations. 

Th e scheduled contractu al m aturities of investm ents held at December 31, 2002 ar e shown below . 
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or 
prepay obligations with or without call or paym ent penalties. 

Due in one year $ 
Due after one year  through five years 
Due after five year s through ten year s 
Due after  ten years 

Am ortized 
Cost 

2,690,738 
11,113,192 
9,479,785 
4.495.701 

$ 27.779.416 

Estim ated Fair 
Value 

$ 2,697,251 
11,972,468 
9,924,199 
4,788,323 

$ 29,382,241 

In vestment income for the years ended December 31, 2002 an d 2001 consists of the following: 

2002 

In terest income $ 
Realized gains - net 
Unrealized gains arising during the year 

5. REINSURA NCE PO LICY COVERAGE 

1,485,246 
129,178 
912,722 

2001 

$ 1,510,036 
255,970 
213,850 

$ 2.527.146 $ 1.979.856 

During the years ended December 31, 2002 an d 2001, LM RFA provided excess reinsurance to the Fund 
with the following lim its: 

Item I: 

Item  I I: 

o $2,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 80 Yo of earned normal premium 

$2,000,000 each and every loss in excess of $175,000 each and every loss 

The Fund and LM RFA represent a cooper ative program  for group funding and risk m an agem ent of public 
liability, workers' compensation and accident and health claim s of participating Louisiana municipalities. 
Although premium s billed to the participants are determ ined on an actuarial basis, ultimate liability for 
claim s rem ain with the participants. 
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LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL RISK M ANAGEM ENT AGENCY 
W ORK ER S' COM PENSATIO N FUND 

NO TES TO FINANCIA L STATEM ENTS 

5. REINSURANCE POLICY COVERAGE (continued) 

The following are condensed balance sheets for LM RFA at December 31, 2002 and 2001 

A ssets 

Liabilities 

Retained earnings 

2002 

$ 39,476,960 

( 14,867,510) 

$ 24.609.450 

2001 

$ 36,076,882 

( 13,052,685) 

~ 23.024.197 

Beginning Jan uary 1, 1995, LM RFA purchased reinsurance for workers' compensation claim s from a third 
party reinsurer. Th e third party provides reinsurance to LM RFA with the following aggregate coverage. 

Item I: $1,000,000 annual aggregate 

Item lI: $1,000,000 each an d every loss in excess of $50,000 each and every  loss up to $750,000 

The third party reinsur er is only responsible for those claim s incurred subsequent to Jan uary 1, 1995 
LM RFA is the reinsurer for the claim s in curred during the years prior to January  1, 1995. 
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The table below illustrates the Fund's earned normal preffnum and invesWnent income compared to related costs and claims 
expense incurred by the Fund as of the end of 2002 and as of the end of each of the last nine years

. 

ENP and invest- 
ment income 

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 0) 1995 1994 1993 
5"fi-O;ous~Td~  --  

$ 6,811 $ 5,566 $ 5,801 $ 4,369 $ 8,896 $ 8,805 $ 8,094 $ 9,506 $ 9,569 $ 9,886 
Operating costs, 
unallocated  1,693 1,452 1,445 1,502 3,327 2,836 2,889 3,380 2,991 3,136 

Estimated incurred  
claiwa and expense, 
end o fpolicy year 

Increase (decrease) in 
estimated incurred 
claims and expense 
from end of policy 
year 

2,146 

643 

2,146 

1,700 

499 
1,093 

1,700 
1.760 

2,184 

716 
1,475 
1,965 

2,184 
2,821 
2,606 

1,473 

463 
1,074 
1,424 
1,499 

1,473 
1,638 
1,792 
1,884 

4,621 4,979 5,811 6,512 

4,621 
1,81t 
2,078 
2,051 
2,005 

4,979 
5,409 
2,342 
2,311 
2,363 
2,446 

5,811 
5,811 
5,882 
1,664 
1,601 
1,601 
1,641 

6,512 
6,413 
6,413 
6,593 
3,038 
3,031 
3,07I 
3,002 

6,352 
6,670 
6,670 
6,670 
6,670 
2,906 
2,916 
2,922 
2,897 

7,041 

1,033 
2,t09 
2,611 
2,989 
3,129 
3,157 
3,166 
3,213 
3,253 
3,315 

7,041 
6,770 
7,163 
7,163 
7,163 
7,163 
3,492 
3,476 
3,486 
3,500 

60 422 411 (2,616) (2,533) (4,170) (3,510) (3,455) (3,541) 

(l) Effective January 1,1996, the Fund accounted for investments on a fair value basis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Renort on Com nliance and on Internal Control Over Finaneia 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

Accordance with Governm ent Auditine Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Risk M an agem ent Agency 
W orkers' Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the financial statem ents of Louisiana M un icipal Risk M anagem ent Agency - W orkers' 
Compensation Fund as of and for th e year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon 
dated June 18, 2003. W e conducted our audit in accordan ce with auditing stan dards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we perform ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct an d material effect on the determination of financial 
statem en t am ounts. However, providing an opinion on com plian ce with  th ose provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over Financial Ren orting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over finan cial reporting in 
order to determ ine our  auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statem ents and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consider ation of 
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the intern al control 
over finan cial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or more of the intern al control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk th at m isstatements in amounts that would be m aterial in relation to th e financial statements 
being audited may occur and not be dctected within a tim ely period by employees in tile normal course of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involving the internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial weaknesses. 

Th is report is intended solely for the inform ation and use of Louisiana M unicipal Risk M anagement Agency - 
W orkers' Compensation Fund, the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office and the Comm issioner of 
Insurance, State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. 

/ 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 
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)EPEND ENT AUDITOR S' REPORT 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fun d Agency 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana Mun icipal Reserve Fund Agency (a quasi-public 
organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and the related statements of revenues, expen ses 
and changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are th e 
responsibility of the Fund's man agement. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statem ents based on our  audits. 

W e conducted our  audits in accordance with auditing standards gen erally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by th e Comptroller General of the United States. 
Th ose stan dards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assur an ce about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatemen t. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan cial statem en ts. An  audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used an d significant estima tes made by man agement, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statem ent presentation. W e believe th at our audits provi de a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our  opinion, the finan cial statem ents referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the finan cial 
position of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fun d Agency as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for th e years then ended in conform ity with accounting principles gener ally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

In  accordan ce with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 18, 2003, on our 
consideration of the Fund's intern al control over financial reporting an d our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Our  audits were m ade for the purpose of form ing an opinion on the basic financial statem ents taken  as a whole. 
The supplem en tary information included on page 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis an d is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. Th e inform ation pertaining to the years ended December 31, 
2002 and 2001 has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements 
and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all m aterial respects in relation to the basic financial statem ents taken as a 
whole. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



Cash (note 4) 
Investments (note 4) 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivables 

Due fi'om affiliates (note 2) 
Reinsurance receivable 

LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND AGENCY 

BAL ANCE SHEETS 
DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 200 

AINED 

2002 2001 

100,096 $ 100,142 
38,211,037 35,548,600 

411,298 367,770 
5,604 32,817 

526,868 

$ 39,476,960 $ 36,076,882 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 3) 
Unearned premium s 

Due to affi liates (note 2) 
Accrued expenses 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 

- 2 - 

$ 14,379,000 
32,023 

456.487 

14,867,510 13,052,685 

24.609.450 23.024.197 

$ 36.076.882 



LOUISIA NA M UNICIPAL 
A  

STATEM ENTS OF REVENUES. EXPEN SES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNING S 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

REVENU ES: 

Premium income (note 2) 
Investment income (note 4) 

Total revenues 

EXPENSES: 

Claims expense (note 3) 
Reinsurance prem ium 
M iscellaneous 

Total expenses 

N et incom e 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents 
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2002 2001 

$ 1,959,736 
3,364,499 

$ 1,715,043 
2,574,977 

3,676,101 

3.738.982 

2,528,469 
237,825 
56,151 

1,585,253 1,467,575 

23.024.197 

$ 24.609.450 $ 23,024.197 



'VE FUN D A 

ATEM ENTS OF 
FOR TH E YEAR S END ED DECEM BER 31. 2002 AND 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
N et incom e 

Less adjustment for investm ent income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 
cash used in operations: 
Change in due to affiliates, reinsurance 
receivable, other receivables 

Change in unpaid claim s liability 
Change in unearned premium s 
reinsuran ce payable, and accrued 

expenses 

Total adjustm ents 

2002 

$ 1,585,253 

(3,364,499) 
$ 1,467,575 

(2,574,977) 

(1,779,246) (1,107,402) 

(1,375,547) 
2,056,000 

(41,695) 
582,000 

440,213 (5,028) 

1A20.666 

Net cash used in operating activities (658,580) (572,125) 

Cash flows from  investing activities: 
Purchases of investm en ts 
Proceeds from  sales or m aturities of investm ents 
Investm ent inter est received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accompanying notes to financial statem ents. 
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(10,303,677) 
9,047,078 
1,915,133 

(19,714,564) 
18,227,111 
2,059,319 

571.866 

(46) (259) 

100.142 100.401 

$ 100,096 $ 100,142 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN TING PO LICIES 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 

Louisiana Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (LMRFA or the Fund) was formed under Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 33:1349(e). LMRFA consists of interlocal risk management agencies pooling 
excess funds to provide reinsuran ce. Adm inistration of the Agency is vested in the Executive 
Board of LMA. LMRFA reinsures the Louisiana Municipal Risk Management Agency (LMRMA) 
Public Liability and W orkers' Compensation Funds. During 2002 and 2001, LM RFA also reinsures 
two and three m unicipalities, respectively. Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, the Fund insured the 
LM RM A Accident and Health Insur ance Fund. 

LM RM A was form ed un der Louisiana Act No. 462 of 1979 to provide a program of worker's 
compensation, accident an d health , and public liability coverage for its member organ izations. In 
accordance with  Revi sed Statutes 33:1341-1350, all local government subdivisions in the state of 
Louisian a are eligible to participate. The program's general objectives are to form ulate, develop, 
and adm inister, on behalf of the m ember local governm ental subdivi sions, a progr am of interlocal 
risk man agement, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, an d to develop a comprehensive loss 
control program. Local govemmental subdivisions joining the Fun d must be members of the 
Louisiana M unicipal Association; a member may withdraw from the Fun d by giving proper notice. 

Fun d underwriting and rate-setting policies have been established by the Board of LM RM A after 
actu arial consultation. If the assets of the Fund were to be exhausted, m embers would only be 
responsible for their respective outstanding claim s. 

Louisian a Municipal Association (LMA) is an association for the mun icipalities of Louisiana an d is 
incorporated as a non-profit corp oration un der the laws of th e State of Louisian a. LM A acts as the 
adm inistrator for LM RFA . 

Risk Man agement, Inc. (RMI) is a third-party service agen t primarily for LMRMA insurance funds 
and LM RFA. RM I, a Louisian a Corp oration, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of LM A. 

The various LM RM A Fun ds, LM A, RM I, and LM RFA are all affiliated through common 
m embership and m anagem ent control. Although all of these entities ar e related parties, their 
various retained earnings are available only to the individual entity for its operations. For this 
reason each en tity is presented as a separate "stan d alone" entity in accordan ce with GASB 10 and 
GASB 14. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterp rise fun d an d, accordingly, uses the accrual m ethod of accounting 
and the flow of econom ic resour ces measurem ent focus. The Fund applies all applicable FASB 
pronouncem ents issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accountin g for its oper ations unless 
those pronouncem ents conflict with or contradict GA SB pronouncements. 

- 5- 



N OTES TO FIN AN CIAL STATEM E 

1. SIGNIFICAN T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(c) Investments 

Investm ents are reported at estimated fair value except for short-term and money m arket 
investm ents, consisting primarily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year or less at 
time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales price if 
available; if not available, fair value is based on estimated fair value. Realized an d unrealized gains 
and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm ent income. Investments 
include money m arket accounts, repurchase agreements, and U.S. Government Agency an d 
Treasury  obligations. 

(d) Preraium Income 

The premium income of LM RFA collected in th e curran t year is based on a percentage of premium 
of LMRM A workers' compensation and public liability funds (see note 2). Pursuant to the 
reinsuran ce agreem ents, the LM RM A Funds are responsible for all of LM RFA 's claims servicing 
and administrative costs. For the year s ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, LM RFA provided 
reinsuran ce directly to municipalities for a total premi um of $84,827 and $108,300, respectively. 
Th e costs associated with new and renewal contracts, as acquisition costs, are imm aterial to the 
finan cial statements an d are expensed when incurred. 

The policy liabilities reinsur ed by the Fund are for claim s incurred during the benefit period, 
regardless of when th e claim s are rep orted. Th e Fund establishes claims  liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have bean 
rep orted but not settled an d of claims that have been incurred but not rep orted. The length of tim e 
for which such costs must be estim ated varies depending on th e coverage involved. Estim ated 
anaounts of reinsur an ce recoverable on un paid claims are deducted from the liability for un paid 
claim s. Because actu al claim s costs depend on such com plex factors as inflation, changes in 
doctrines of legal liability, and dam age awards, the process used in computing claim s liabilities 
does not necessarily result in an exact amount, particularly for coverages such as general liability . 
Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques 
to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlem ents, claim s frequency, and other economi c 
and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future claim s costs is 
implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data that reflects past 
inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate m odifiers of past experience. 
Adjustments to claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are 
m ade. The carrying am ount of liabilities for claim s losses and claim s expenses are presented at 
present value in the financial statements. Such reserves have been discounted at 5.8% at December 
31, 2002 an d 2001. 

09 Statement of Cash Flows 
For the purpose of the statem ents of cash flow s, cash includes cash in-dem and deposit accounts 
with banks. Because certificates of deposit, m oney m arkets and repurchase agreem ents are usually 

purchased with maturities of 90 days or more, they are classified as investments (see note 4). 
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LOUISIANA M UN ICIPAL 
A 

CIAL 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

(g) Income Taxes 

The Fund is exempt from federal income taxes under Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(h) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has made a number of estimates an d assumptions relating to the reporting 
of assets an d liabilities to prepare these financial statem ents in conform ity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could differ from 
those estim ates and assumptions. For example, significant estimates and assumptions are used in 
estimating its insurance liabilities, fair values of investm ents and accruals. If future experience 
differs materially for these estimates and assumptions, the financial statem entz could be affected. 

2. RELATED PARTY TRA N SACTIONS 

LM A, RM I, LM RM A and LM RFA provide services related to the self-insurance funds operated for the 
benefit of Louisiana municipalities. The fees for th ese services are based on a percentage of the 
respective earned standard premiums (ESP) as follows: 

Prem ium  incom e: 
LM RM A: 
Public Liability 
W orkers' Compensation 

Due from (to) affiliates 
LM RM A : 
Public Liability 
W orkers' Compensation 
RM I 

Fee 
Basis 2002 2001 

18.0%  ESP $ 1,496,542 $ 
7.0%  ESP 378,367 

7 - 

1,312,959 
293.783 

$ 1,874,909 $ 1,606,743 

$ 223,673 $ 
47,995 
255,200 

(265,713) 
(415,875) 

$ 526,868 $ (681,388) 



N 

LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL 
RESERVE FUND  AGENCY 

7A 

3. CLAIM S EXPENSE AND UNPAID CLAIM S LIA BILITY 

The following represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claim s liabilities for the Fund for the years 
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001: 

Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (gross) 
Less: Reinsurance reeoverables (net) 
Liability for unpaid losses at beginning of year (net) 

N et incurred related to 
Current year 
Prior years 
Total incurred 

Net paid related to 
Curren t year 
Prior years 
Total paid 

Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (gross) 
Reinsurance recoverablea (net) 
Liability for unpaid losses at end of year (net) 

2002 2001 
(Amoun ts inthousands) 

$ 12,323 $ 11,741 

12,323 11,741 

2,875 
801 

3,676 

1,620 
1,620 

1,830 
698 

2,528 

L946 
1,946 

14,379 12,323 

The Fund's claim s payable have been discounted for December 31, 2002 an d 2001 based on the Fund's 
an ticipated payout patterns and a discount rate assumption of 5.8% , which m anagem ent expects to 
approxim ate the interest earnings over the payout period. The effect of the reserve discounts was 
$5,116,000 and $4,397,000 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. 

4. DEPO SITS AND INVESTM ENTS 

LM RFA must comply with Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insurance, State of Louisiana. 
According to Rule Number 4, all deposits in finan cial institutions made by this fund shall be lim ited to 
institutions in Louisiana unless a higher rate can  be obtained in an out-of-state institution. Deposits in 
financial institutions m ay exceed the federally insur ed amoun t in any one financial institution, as long as 
the amount is not in excess of the greater of $500,000 or 5% of the combination of surplus, undivided 
profits and reserves as currently reported by the financial institution. In regard to deposits and 
investm ents, the Fund was in compliance with these revised provisions during the year s ended December 
31, 2002 and 2001. 

The dem and deposits ar e categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assum ed at year end. 
"In sur ed" deposits are those balances protected by federal depository insuran ce. "Uninsured" deposits 
are those balances in excess of federal depository  insurance or pledged collateral. 

- 8- 



NO TES TO FINANCIAL STATE 

4. DEPOSITS AND INVESTM ENTS (~~nGuuexI) 

In sured 
Uninsured 

2002 

$ 100,096 $ 100,142 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Comm issioner of Insurance, State of Louisian a, the Fund may invest an y 
surplus monies in obligations of the U .S. Government and its agencies, as well as finan cial institutions. 
Included in investments are certificates of deposit, money m arket accounts and repurchase agreements. 

The Fund's investm ents are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the 
Fund at year-end. Category 1 investments include securities which are insured or registered or securities 
held by LM RFA or its agent in LM RFA 's nam e. The U.S. Governm ent agency obligation investm en ts 

are direct obligations registered in the name of the Fund an d held by the Fun d's investment agent. Money 
market accounts are eollateralized by obligations of the U.S. Governm ent registered in the nam e of and 
held by the Fund's agent. The amortized cost of th e Fund's investm en ts are $35,972,335 and 
$34,734,220 at December 31, 2002 an d 2001, respectively. The estimated fair value of investm en ts by 
type at December 31, 2002 an d 2001, are as follows: 

M oney market accoun ts 
U .S. Governm ent Agency 
obligations 

U .S. Treasury obligations 

2002 2001 Category 

$ 1,114,241 $ 2,205,517 

28,790,024 
8,306,772 

26,567,677 
6,775,406 

1 
1 

In cluded in investm ent balances as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are derivative investm en ts. Th ese 
investments included U .S. Treasury strips, collater alized m ortgage obligations, and floating rate 
securities. These derivative investm ents are interest rate sensitive an d, as a result, could experience 
future market value fluctuations. 
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4. DEPO SITS AND 

FA 

(continued) 

The scheduled m aturities, at estimated fair value, of securities held were as follows at December 31 

Due in oneyear 
Due after one year through five years 

Due after five year s thr ough ten years 
Due after ten years 

Amortized 
Cost 

Estim ated 
Fair 
V alue 

$ 4,081,732 $ 4,094,714 
13,689,712 

8,402,250 
9.798.641 

14,705,764 
9,237,468 
10.173.091 

Investment income for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 consists of the following: 

Interest incom e 
Realized gains - net 
Unrealized gains arising during the year 

POLICY CO 

2002 2001 

$ 1,825,559 
114,618 

1,424,322 

$ 1,991,614 
153,336 
430,027 

- 10 - 



CIAL STA 

5. REIN SUR AN CE POLICY COVERAGE 

Assumed: 

(continued) 

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, LM RFA provided excess reinsuran ce to LM RM A 
Public Liability and W orkers' Compensation Funds with the following limits: 

W orkers' Cornnensation Fund 

Item I: $2,000,000 an nual aggregate in excess of 80% of earned normal premium 

Item 1I: $2,000,000 each an d every loss in excess of $175,000 each an d every loss 

Public Liability Fund 

Item I: $5,000,000 annual aggregate in excess of 65% of earned norm al premi um 

Item II: $400,000 each and every loss in excess of $100,000 each and every  loss 

The LM RM A Accident an d Health Fund obtained com m ercial reinsurance effective Jan uary 1, 1995 an d 
is not covered by LM RFA. As of December 31, 2002 an d 2001, the Fund had no outstan ding reserves 
related to the LM RM A Accident an d Health Fund. Effective Jan uary 1, 2003, the Fund began  providin g 
reinsuran ce to the LM RM A  Accident and Health Fund. 

As of December 31, 2002 and 2001, LM RFA also provi des reinsur an ce for 2 an d 3, respectively, 
municipalities for workers' compensation claims up to an  annual aggregate am ount ran ging from 80% to 
90%  of their standard prem ium . 

LM RFA obtained comm ercial reinsurance to cover a portion of th e workers' compensation m edical losses for 
th e periods Jan uary  1, 1995 through December 31, 2001. For the years ended D ecember 31, 2002 and 2003, 
the LM RFA did not renew this reinsur ance. For th e year ended December 31, 2001, LM RFA obtained 
reinsur ance with the following coverage: 

W orkers' Comnensation Fund 

Item  I: 

Item  II 

$2,000,000 annual aggr egate 

$1,000,000 each and every  loss in excess of $50,000 each and every  loss up to 
$750,000 

No reinsurance is obtained for the Public Liability Fund coverage 



 

DECEM I~.ER 3"t, ~ 2 

The table below illustrates the Fund's earned nom~al premium and investment incon~e compared to related costs and claims expeme incurred by 
the Fund as of the end of 2002 and as of the end of each of the last nine y~rs. 

ENP and investlalent 
income $ 5,324 $ 4,290 $ 4,586 

Operating costs, 
unallocated 63 294 293 

Estimated incurred  
claims and expense, 
end of policy year 3,710 

Paid (cumulative) as of: 
End of~olicy year 
One year later 
Two years later 
Three years later 
Four years later 
Five years later 
Six years later 
Seven years later 
Eight years later 
Nine y~as later 

Increase (decrease) in 
estimated  incurred 
clahns and expense 
from end of policy 
year 

2,309 

413 

3,710 2,309 
2,305 

783 

69 
300 

1,783 
1,624 
1,570 

1999 

2,591 

t35 

431 
737 
910 

1,983 
2,319 
3,690 
3,842 

1998 1997 1996 0) 1995 
71~ -ffu~an~ U --  " 

4,474 

407 

2,302 

77~ 
859 
931 

2,302 
2,352 
2A34 
2,t67 
2,222 

5,004 

483 

3,901 

140 
140 
282 
555 
571 
75O 

3,901 
2,016 
1,906 
1,630 
1,434 
1,556 

4,142 

415 

4,327 

427 

4,443 

20 

4,897 

17 

3,887 3,793 4,144 3,130 

69 
247 
650 
,277 
,281 

3,887 
2,083 
1,367 
1,574 
t,795 
1,796 
1~85 

283 
,289 
,350 
,423 
,585 
,797 

3,793 
2293 
3,818 
3,367 
3,099 
2,795 
2fl39 
2,678 

195 
487 
490 
542 

1,155 
1,166 
1,172 
1,312 
1,312 

4,144 
4,230 
2,304 
2,01o 
2,219 
2,168 
2fi82 
2,171 
2,180 

627 
627 

1,175 
1,265 
1,446 
2,104 
2,136 
2,621 
2,661 
2,733 

3,130 
3,792 
3,146 
2,973 
3,178 
3,388 
3,032 
3,292 
3,133 
3,253 

(4) (213) 1,859 (80) (2,345) (2,102) (1,115) (1,964) 123 

(1) Effective January 1, 1996, the Fund accounted for lrvestmentsonafairvaluebasis. 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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www.pncp~.com 

Renort on Com nliance and on Internal Control O ver Financia 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed in 

Accordance with Governm ent Auditine Standards 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M un icipal Reserve Fund Agency: 

W e have audited the financial statements of Louisian a Municipal Reserve Fund Agency (the Fund) as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2002, and have issued our report thereon dated Jun e 18, 2003. W e 
conducted our audit in accordan ce with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica 
and the standards applicable to finan cial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller  General of th e United States. 

Com pliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assur ance about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material 
misstatem en t, we perform ed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on th e determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an  

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance th at are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

Internal Control Over  Financial Renortin ~ 

In planning and perform ing our  audit, we considered the Fund's intem al control over finan cial reporting in 
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opin ion on the financial 
statem ents an d not to provide assurance on the internal control over Fin ancial reporting. Our consider ation of 
the internal control over finan cial reporting would not necessarily disclose all m atters in th e intern al control 
over finan cial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the 
design or operation of one or m ore of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that misstatements in am ounts that would be material in relation to th e finan cial statem ents 
being audited m ay occur  and not be detected within a tim ely period by employees in the norm al cour se of 
perform ing their assigned functions. W e noted no m atters involvi ng th e internal control over financial 
reporting and its operation that we consider to be m aterial weakn esses. 

This report is intended solely for the inform ation an d use of Louisiana M unicipal Reserve Fund Agency, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor's Office an d the Louisiana Comm issioner of Insurance, and is not inten ded to 
be and should not be used by anyone other th an these specified par ties. 

/ 
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 
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Postlethw aite &  N etterville 
A ProfessionaF Accounting Corporation 

Associated Offices in Principal COies of Ihe LJniled Slofes 

www.pncpa.com 

EPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Offi cers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Association 

Unemploym ent Compensation Fun d 

W e have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Louisiana M unicipal Association - Unemployment 

Compensation Fun d (a quasi-public organization) (the Fund) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the 
related statements of revenues, expenses an d changes in retained earnings, and cash flows for the years th en 
ended. These financial statemen ts are the responsibility of the Fun d's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statem ents based on our audits. 

W e conducted our audits in accordan ce with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica and with Government Auditing Standards, issued by th e Comptroller General of the United States. 
Th ose standards require that we plan  and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assuran ce about whether the 
fin ancial statem ents are free of material m isstatem ent. An audit includes exam ining, on a test basis, eviden ce 
supporting the amounts an d disclosures in the finan cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used an d significant estima tes made by man agemen t, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. W e believe that our  audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, th e finan cial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Louisian a M unicipal Association - Unemploym ent Compensation Fund as of D ecem ber 31, 2002 
and 2001, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conform ity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. 

In  accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report, dated June 18, 2003, on 
our consideration of the Fund's internal control over finan cial reporting and our tests of its complian ce with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and ~-ants. 

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 
June 18, 2003 

8550 United Plaza Blvd, Suite 1001 Baton Rouge, LA 70809 Tel: 225.922.4600 Fax: 225.922.4611 



Cash (note 3) 
Investments (note 3) 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 

2002 2001 

20,861 

3,451~02 
43,517 
41.062 

$ 104,388 
6,978,837 

57,348 
86,050 

$ 3,556,842 $ 7,226,623 

Liabilities: 

Unpaid claims liability (note 4) 
Accru ed expenses 

Policyholder dividend payable (note 2) 

Retained earnings 

See accompanying notes to finan cial statem ents. 

2 

100,000 
78,397 

100,000 
14,211 
191.490 

178,397 305,701 

3,378,445 6,920,922 

$ 3,556,842 $ 7,226,623 



LO UISIAN A M UNICIPAL A SSO CIA TIO N 
UNEM PLOYM ENT COM PEN SATION FUND 

REVENUES 
Prem ium  incom e 
Investm ent incom e 

Total revenues 

EXPEN SES: 

Claims expense (note 4) 
Service agent fees 
Actuarial and professional fees 

Policyholder dividend (note 2) 
M iscellaneous 

N et incom e 

Total expenses 

Excess fund distribution (note 2) 

Retained cam ings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

See accom pan ying notes to financial statem ents. 

3 

2002 

$ 205,912 
279,577 

485.489 

353,758 
23,489 
27,989 

5.730 

$ 212,679 
523.866 

275,081 
23,843 

191,490 
16,228 

410.966 506.642 

74,523 229,903 

(3,617,000) 

6,920,922 6.691.019 

$ 3,378,445 $ 6,920,922 



LO UISIANA M UNICIPAL A SSO CIATION 
UNEM PLO YM ENT COM PENSATIO N FUND 

STATEM ENTS O F CASH  FLO W S 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net incom e 

Less adjustment for investm ent income 

Adjustments to reconcile net income 
to net cash used in operations: 
Changes in operating assets an d liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Unpaid claim s liability 
Accrued expenses and dividend payable 

Total adjustm ents 

N et cash used in operating activities 

Cash flow s from  investing activities: 
Purchases of investm ents 
Proceeds from sale or m aturity of investm ents 
Interest income received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from finan cing activities 
Distribution of excess funds 

Net cash used in finan cing activities 

N et change in cash 

Cash, beginning of year 

Cash, end of year 

See accom panying notes to financial statem ents 

4 

2002 2001 

74,523 

(279,577) 
$ 229,903 

(523,866) 

13,831 

(1,395~28) 
4,944,404 
303.024 

21,571 
57,519 

(3,823,798) 
3,665,077 
435.871 

277.150 

(83,527) 68,091 

104.388 

20.861 



II 
LO UISIANA M UN ICIPAL ASSO CIATION 

1. SIGNIFICANT A CCO UN TING POLICIE S 

(a) Background and Financial Statement Presentation 
Louisiana Municipal Association - Unemployment Compensation Fund (the Fund) was formed 
un der Louisiana Revised Statutes 23:1552. The Fund consists of Louisiana mun icipalities joined 
together in self-insurance agreements with respect to unemploym ent compensation fired 
insurance. Adm inistration of the Fund is performed by a contracted service provider and 

oversigh t is vested in the Executive Board of Louisiana Municipal Association. 

(c) 

Louisiana Mun icipal Association (LMA) is an association for the municipalities of Louisiana and 
is incorporated as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Louisiana. LM A acts as 
the adm inistrator for th e Fund. 

As of December 31, 2002, there were approximately 6,600 participan ts and 136 participating 
m unicipalities. A s of December 31, 2001, there wer e approxim ately 6,100 participants and 142 
participating m unicipalities. 

The Fund and LM A are affiliated through comm on membership an d management control. 
Although both of these en tities are related parties, their equity is available only to the individual 
entity for its oper ations. For this reason each entity is presented as a separate "stand alone" 
entity in accordance with GASB 10 an d GASB 14. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Fund is considered an enterp rise fund and, accordingly, uses the accrual method of 
accoun ting and th e flow of economic resour ces measurement focus. The Fun d applies all 
applicable FASB pronoun cements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accoun ting for its 
operations un less those pronouncemen ts conflict or contradict GASB pronouucements. 

Cash and Cash Flows 

For the purposes of th e statements of cash flows, cash includes cash in demand deposit accounts 
with ban ks. Because certificates of deposit, m oney markets and repurchase agreem ents are 
usually purchased with maturities of 90 days or more or are reinvested continuously, they are 
classified as investm ents. 

(d) Investments 

Investments are reported at estim ated fair value except for short-term and m oney m arket 
investm ents, consisting primarily of U .S. Treasury obligations with a m aturity of one year  or less 
at time of purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on the last reported sales 
price if available; if not available, fair value is based on estim ated fair value. Realized and 
unrealized gains and losses on investm ents recorded at fair value are included in investm en t 
income. Included in investments are deposits in money market accoun ts, investments in U .S. 
Govern ment Agency Obligations and Treasury and short-term  repurchase agreem ents. 

- 5 - 



M PLOYM ENT COM PENSATION F 

"A 

G POLl (continued) 

Claims expense consists of estimated amounts for claim s incurred during the current year and 
adjustments to the accounting estimate of prior years' claims expense. Because the adjustm en t to 
prior years' loss am ounts represents changes in accounting estim ates, these changes are reflected 
in earn ings in the period th ey becom e known. The Fun d establishes claim liabilities based on 
estim ates of th e ultima te cost of claim s that have been rep orted, but not yet settled. 

09 Income Taxes 

Th e Fund is exempt from federal income taxes un der Sections 7701 and 115(1) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. 

(g) Premium Income and Accounts Receivable 
Premiums are recognized as income over the life of the policies as they become earned. Atiy 
adjustments to annual premiums  are considered to be a change in estimate and are recognized in 
the year  th ey becom e kn own . 

Accounts receivable are considered to be fully collectible by m anagement; therefore, no reserve 
for bad debts has been established. 

(h) Use of Estimates 
M anagement of the Fund has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the 
reporting of assets and liabilities to prepar e th ese finan cial statem ents in conform ity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica. Actual results could 
differ from th ose estimates and assumptions. For example, sign ifican t estimates and assumptions 
are used in estimating its in suran ce liabilities, fair values of investm ents and accruals. If future 
experien ce differs m aterially for these estim ates and assumptions, the financial statements could 
be affected. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In 2002, the LM A board approved a return of $3,617,000 of excess funds which was paid during 2002 
to members of the Fun d. Th is rebate was pro-rated on prem ium paym en ts for the years 1979 - 2000 
and paid to those m unicipalities that wer e m em bers of the Fun d as of December 31,2001. 

In 2001, the LM A board approved a rebate of $191,490 of 2000 interest earnings to be paid to 
members of the Fun d in 2002. This rebate is to be prorated on prem ium  paym ents for the year 2000 
an d paid to those m unicipalities that were m embers of the Fund as of December 31, 2000. 
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I,OUISIANA M UNICIPAL ASSOCIATION 

3. CASH  AND INV ESTM ENTS 

Cash on deposit in banks is carried at cost. M oney market accounts and repurchase agreem ents are 
included in investments as their average maturity is greater than 90 days and the amounts are 

reinvested continuously. 

Insured 
Uninsured 

20,861 $ 100,000 
4,388 

$ 20,861 5 
_

104,388 

Under Rule Number 4 of the Commissioner of Insur ance, State of Louisiana, the Fun d may invest any 
surplus m onies in obligations of the U .S. Govern m en t and its Agencies, as well as financial 
institutions. Included in investm ents are certificates of deposit, money market accounts and repurchase 

agr eem ents. 

The Fund's investm en ts are categorized as follows to give an indication of the level of risk assum ed by 
the Fun d at year-end. Category 1 securities are held by the Fund or its agent in the Fund's nam e. 

Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investm ents for which the securities are held by the 
broker's or dealer 's trust department or agent in the Fund's name. Category  3 includes un insured an d 

un registered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust 
departm ent or agent, but not in the Fund's nam e. 

Th e U .S. Government Agency obligation investments are direct obligations registered in the nam e of 
the Fun d an d held by the Fund's investment agent. The repurchase agr eement, cash and money market 
are collateralized by obligations of the U.S. Government registered in the name of and held by the 

Fund' s agent. 

Included in investmen t balances are derivative financial statements. These investm ents may include 
U .S. Treasury strips, collateralized m ortgage obligations, and floating rate securities. These derivative 
investm ents ar e inter est rate sensitive and, as a result, could experience m arket fluctuations. 
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3. CASH  AND 

LOUISIANA M UNICIPAL A SSO CIATION 
TIO 

STA" 

The amortized cost of the Fund's investments is $3,308,312 and $6,842,978 at December 31, 2002 and 
2001, respectively. The estimated fair value for investm ents by type at December 31 is as follows: 

M oney m arket accoun ts 
U .S. Governm ent Agen cy obligations 
U .S. Treasury securities 

$ 127,452 
1,275,292 
2,048,658 

$ 261,173 
2,661,813 
4,055,851 

The scheduled contractual maturities of investments held at December 31, 2002 are shown below. 
Expected m aturities will differ from  contractual ma turities because borrowers m ay have the right to 
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepaym ent penalties: 

Due in one year 
Due after one year through five year s 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after  ten  year s 

Am ortized 
Cost 

452,096 $ 
1,228,706 
1,057,752 
569.758 

Estima ted 
Fair 
Value 

454,197 
1,293,508 
1,106,790 
596,547 

$ 3,308,312 $ 3,451,042 

In vestm ent incom e fortheyearsen ded December31,2002 and 2001 consists ofthefollowing 

2002 2001 

Interest incom e 

Realized gains (losses) - net 
Unrealized gains arising during the year  

- 8- 

$ 209,759 
62,587 
7,231 

$ 279.577 

$ 382,362 
40,079 
101,425 

$ 523.866 



LO UISIA NA M UNICIPAL A SSO CIA TION 

4. CLAIM S EXPEN SE AND  U NPAID CLAIM S LIABIL ITY 

The following represents changes in the aggregate unpaid claim s liability for the Fund for the years 
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001: 

Unpaid claims liability 
at beginning of year 

Incurred claims and claim adjustment 
expen ses 
Provision for insured events of the 
current year  

Paym ents: 

Claims and claim adjustm ent expenses 
Attributable to insured events of 
current year 

Claims and claim adjustm ent expenses 
Attributable to insured even ts of 
prior years 
prior years 

Total paym ents 

Total un paid claims liability 
at end of year 

- 9- 

2002 2001 

(in thousan ds) 

100 $ 42 

354 275 

291 175 

63 
63 

354 

42 
42 

217 



Postlethwaite &  N etterville 
A Professional Accounhng Corporation 
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R enort on Com pliance and on Internal Control over Financia 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents Perform ed 

in A ccordance with Governm ent Auditine Standards 

Officers and Trustees 
Louisiana M unicipal Association 
Unemploym ent Compensation Fund 

W e have audited the finan cial statem ents of Louisiana M unicipal A ssociation - Unemploym ent 
Compensation Fund (the Fund) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002, an d have issued our report 
thereon dated June 18, 2003. W e conducted our  audit in accordance with auditing standards gen erally 
accepted in the United States of Am erica and th e standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Com plian ce 

As part of obtaining reasonable assur an ce about whether the Fund's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we perform ed tests of its complian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts an d 
grants, noncomplian ce with which could have a direct an d material effect on the determination of financial 
statem ent amoun ts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an  

objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncornpliance that are required to be reported un der Government Auditing Standards. 

Intern al Control Over Finan cial Reoortin ~ 

In planning an d per form ing our audit, we considered the Fund's internal control over financial reporting in 
order to determ ine our  auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our  opinion on the financial 
statemen ts an d not to provide assuran ce on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of 
the internal control over financial reporting would not necessar ily disclose all m atters in th e internal control 
over financial reporting that m ight be m aterial weaknesses. A m aterial weakness is a condition in which th e 
design or operation of one or m ore of the intern al control components does not reduce to a relatively low 
level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be m aterial in relation to the financial statemen ts 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a tim ely period by employees in the normal course of 


